
Ncic6; This docision may be fonmlly revissd before it is ptblished in the Disuiet of Colurmbia Registcr. Fsrtics
slqrld promply notiS trh officc of any sru's so that they m8y be conect€d bcforc pblishing thc &cisiot. This
ruice is not inardod to provide an opporhrnity for a sl$etantive challorge to thc decision.

Goveramcnt of the Dlstrict of Cohmbta
Public Enpbycc Rclrrtions Board

)
IntheMatterof: )

)
Fraternd OrderofPolice/Deprtnent of )
CorrectionslaborCommittee )
(onbhalfof AllsnClaiborne), )

)
Pctitioner, )

) PERB CaseNo. l2-E49
v.)

) OpinionNo. 1398
IXsnict of Columbia @rrrent of Conections, )

)
)

Reryodent )
)

I}ECISION AND ORDER

The Fraternal Order of Police/Deparnncnt of Corrections Labor Committec (*FOP' or
"Petitioned) has paitiod the Board to enforce an arbitration award arising out of disciplfun
imposd upon Corporal Allen Claiborne (qClaibotme" or "Grievantn) by the District ofCohunbia
Oeparrent of Correitions f €orrections" or "Reqpondeirt').

L Stetcnmt of the Cege

For a period of appreximtely an hour and a half the nnming of Decernbs 23, 2(X)6, the
Grievant rryhile on drry at a Conpctions facilrry, faild to make srcurity cheks that were
rcquired to be made every half hour. Duing th"t p"tioa, an inmate committed s-uicide.
Followirg this incident, Corrections renpved Claiborne from his position with Conections. FOP
fild agrievancc, andfftc mattswas referred to arbitnation.

On Septertber 15, 2(XX), the arbinator issud an opinion and auard (*Original Award") in
which he sustaincd the grievarrce. The arbitrator also concludd that he hd the authority to
auard dtotneys' fees in the arbiuation rnder the Back Pay Acg 5 U.S.C. $ 55%. The arbitrator
is$d Se following anand:

l. The removaloftlrc Crrierrant wasnot for caurc.



Ibision and Oder
PERB Casc No. 12-E49
Page 2

2. The Grienant's removal shall be rcduced to a suspension
widrout py for sixty days, and the Grievant shall be rcinstated
forthwith.

3. The Grievant shall reccive all pay, bcnefits and entitlements
providd urder the Back Pay Act and undcrtheAgreement.

4. Tlre Union may file a motion for attorney's fees with the
Albin*or rp latcr than twenty-one days from tre date of this
Award. Therefrer th Union and the Departrnent slrall aftempt
to agr€e m the amount of any dtomey's fees to be awarded to
the Gricvanr ff rn agreemeirt is reachd wi&in fourteen dap
after the submission of the motion, the Depcrtnent will have an
additiomlfourteen days theieafferto rqond to thc motion.

5. The Arbitator will rctain jurisdiction for nirrety days from the
date of this Award to rcsolve any disputes regarding atorne/s
fees ad/or compliancc with this Aqrrard.

(Original Awlrd at pp. 2C27r.

Cormtions filed an Sitration review rqu6t solely on the arbitrator's reservation of
altrority to aunard attorreys' fees- TIre Boatd issued a deisiqr and order f'Decision and
O!d€f) susining the Original Award" D.C. hp't of Corrs. ottd FoPlfup't of Cons. Iabar
Comm,sg D.C. Reg. 10816, Slip op. No. 1306, PERB Case No. l&A-03 (201l). On April 30,
2013, Conections' motion for reconsideration rvas denied. D.C. hp't of Cons. v. FOP/fup't of
Cons. Iabr Comttt,60 D.C. Reg; 7185, Slip Op. No. 1380, PERB Case No. IGA-03 (2013).

While thc motion for reconsideration rvas peding FOP filed a petition for enforcement

fPaitionJ.r Ttae Petition stats that on Novcmber ll, 2009, the afrirator issued a
srpplcnrentat award (*Srryplerncntal Awad"), which a$ardd $23J00 in attonrcys' fees to
FOP's dlorney. The Petition allqes thd *[t]lrc DisEict of Colurnbia has not complied with the
aurard of asonrys' fs.'n @etition at p. 2). The Petition concludes with this prayer for relief:
*FOP/DOC rcryec,truy rqtrests tlnt PERB issue an order to enforce its Decision and Order of
August 9,2012" awading attomey's fees with intcrest and leave to file a firther petition for
attomeys' fe6 with PERB on accormt of &e cost of obtaining the award.* (Petition at p. 3).
Corrections moved to dimiss tlrc Petition on the.grounds that it was premattrre as it tms filed
uilrile Corrections' motion for reconsideration was pending and that ii failed to set forth a prima
f*ie ca* under Boad Rulc 560.1. On September 26,2A12, FOP fild an opposition to tlp
mo'tion to disniss in wtrich it acknowldged that FOP is also sedcing cnforcement of tlre
aftonrc1n' fe aumrd in tln District of Columbia Superior Court. On Jrme 26,2A13, FOP filed a
plcading entitld'Pe,titioner's Motion to Grant Paition for Enforcem€Nrt or, in the Altcrnative,

I FOP cnmeorsly fited illc Pctitim in drarbibilidr rsview iritiaficd by Cwecrionq PERB Clsc No. IGA{3. The
Petition has ht gittctt PERB C8sc l,b. l2-E-09.
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Petitioner's Second Petition forEnforcement" in which FOP noted dtsttlrc denial ofCorections'
motion for reconsideralion had become final and again requested the Board to "issnc an order to
enforce is Decision and Orrder of August 9,2012, and April 30, 2013, awarding attorrey's fees
with interest and lcave to filc a firther petition for attomeys' fees with PERB on accormt of the
cost of obtainirg the awdrd."

n Discusibn

The Pefitioner's Motion to Grant Petition for Enforcerent or, in the Alternative,
Petitioner's Sccord Petition for Enfolccnent moots thc Respondent's argument that the Petition
was prematurely filed rafiile the Respondent's motion for reconsideration nras pending. On the
rcdtq {re Respondent contends that *ttrc Petition erroneously conflates the PERB Decision and
Orrdcr with an albination award that has never been before PERB, ard inappropriately seeks

enforcement of such arbination award (and not the PERB Decision and Orrder)." (Mot. to
Dismiss at p. 3). This conflation of the Deision ard Oder with the Supplemental A$nard can be
seen in FOP's prayer for rclief, which asks tlrc Boad to enforce *its Decision and Onder . . .
anardirg attorney's fees with interest . . ." The two can be untangl€d by considering uftether
the elerrenb under Board Rule 560.1 are present with respect to the Origind Award and to the
Srpplemenal Award-

Boad Rule 560.1 provides: *If any party fails to comply with the Board's decision within
the timc period spocified in Section 559.1, the prevailing porty may petition the Board to enforce
tlre order." Thus, two elenrcnts of a petition for enforcement rc (l) a decision of the Board and
(2) a frilrre to cornply with that decision within fic specificd time period. As note4 the Original
Awald reduced the penalty impod on Claibome, orderd his rcinstatcrcnt with back pay, and
establisM a procedurc by which FOP could move for attorneys' f€es. The Decision and Order
$rsgid this award. Beeu* there is a Deision ard ffier, the first elernent of Rule 560.1 is
met. But there is no allegation that Corrections failcd to comply with what rpas ordered by the
Decision and frer, which is to say, there is no allegation that Corrections failed to comply with
alrything ordered by tln auatd the Board sustained. For examplg such an allegation muld be
that Claiborne was not reinstate4 see FoP/Metropolitan Police Deprtnrenl Lobor Committee v.

DC. Metrapolitan Palice Deptment (on belnlf of Sugg$, 59 D.C. Reg. 5006, Slip Op. No. 966
at p. 4" PERB Case No. 08-E-02 (2009), or not paid his back pay, see FoP/Deprtment of
Conections labor Committee (on behalf of Batler) v. D.C. furytment of Corrections, Slip Op.
No. 1022 at p. 7, PERB Case No. 10-842 (July 29, 2010), or Gven that Conections did not
*attemg to agrc€ fwith FOPI on tlrc amount of attomey's fees to be aunrded tlp 6rievant."
(Origrnal Awad at p. 27).

Sfhile the Petitioner made m allegation of such a failurre to c,omply with &e Origiml
Au/and" Petitions des allege a frihme to comply wittt the Srryplernenal Award's order to pay
$23,700 in anornef' fm. However, there has ben no decision md ordcr of the Board
suseainiag that awrd. Aleough the Board hr authority to seek enforcenrent of its olders, it
does not have authority to seck enforcement of orders of third parties srrch as arbitrators.
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FOP/Metro. Police fup't Labor Comm v. D.C. Metro. Police Dep't,39 D.C. Reg.9617, Slip
Op.No. 295 xp. 3, PERB Case No. 9l-U-18 (1992).

Whetlrcr the Petition is sceking enforcement of what rrzs ordered by the Original Award
or by tlrc Supplernenal Au/and, th elqnents of a dccision and ordcr of thc Bosd and a failure to
comply with the decision and order art not present. Therefore, the Respondent's motion to
disuriss is grantd.

ORDER

IT IS IMNEBY ORIDERED TTIAT:

l. The Department of Conections' motion to dismiss is grantd.

2. The Fratcrnal Orrder of Policc/Deparhent of Conections Labor Committee's
petition for enforcetrent is denicd.

3. The Fraternal Order of Police/kparfincnt of Corrections [^abor Courmittee's
motion to grant petition for enforcement or, in the altenutive, second petition for
enforcement is denied.

4. Pursuant to Board Rrrle 559.1, this Docision and Order is final upon issrance.

BY ORDER OF TIIE PI,'BLIC EMPLOYEE REIJTTIONS BOARI)
Washiryon" D.C.

July l,2013
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CERTIFICATE OFSERVICE

This is to certif, that the attached Decision and Order in PERB Case No. l2-E-09
is being transmitted to the following parties on this the lst day of July 2013.

Kevin Stokes
Jonathan O'Neil
Offrce of Labor Relations and Collective Bargaining
441 4th St. NW, suite 820 North
Washington, D.C. 20001

J. Michael Hannon
1901 lSth StreetNW
Washington, D.C.2009

VIA FILE & SERVEXPRESS

VIA FILE & SERVEXPRESS

David McFadden
Attomey-Advisor


